Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Balance sheet
as ut 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 16,726.86 12,501.84
Capital work-in-progress 2 55.96 1,244.68
Right-of-use assets 41 1,206.55 1,221.44
Intangible assets 3 119.22 189.54
Intangible asscts under development 3 - 13.33
Biclogical assets other than bearer plants 4 913.37 345.38
Financial assets
(i) Loans 5 6.36 16.28
(ii) Others 6 484.43 636.58
Deferred tax assets, (net) 7 293.34 08145
Non-current tax assets, (net) 929.66 388.62
Other non-current assets & 9.92 824.56
Total non-current assets 20,745.67 18,36ﬁ-
Current assets
Biolagical assets other than bearer plants 4 7,290.50 9,784 85
Inventories g 4,739.99 5.491.05
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 5,359.44 4,307.83
(it) Cash and cash equivalents 11 602.11 260.91
{iliy Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 T.26 7.46
(iv) Loans 13 71.21 173.23
(v} Others 14 13.37 18.46
Other current assets 15 900.64 1,320.45
Total current assets 18,984.52 21,3 6424
Total assets B 39,730.19 39,727.94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital Is 19.89 15.89
Other equity 17 18,739.45 16,055.85
Total equity 18,759.34 ~16,075.74
Liabilities
Non curreat liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 1384 1,580.48 1,521.09
(ii) Lease Liabilities 194 60.23 50,19
{b) Provisions 20 3749 34,22
Dreferred tax liabilities {net) - -
() Other non current liabilities 21 31845 349.92
Total non-current liabilities 1,996.65 — 1,955.42
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 188 6,744.65 6,835.56
(ii) Lease Liabilities 198 30.37 4669
(iii} Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 67348 213,90
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,810.37 12,132.35
(iv} Other financial liabilities 23 2.326.5% 1,823.85
Other current liabilities 24 356.90 32515
Provisions 25 75.59 92,70
Current tax tiabilities 956.25 226.58
Tatal current liabilities 18,974.20 21,696.78
Total liahilities 20,970.85 23,652.21

Toflal equity and liahilities 39,730.19 35,727.94




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Balance sheet (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency; Indian rupees in lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 form an miegral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached,
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Chartered Accountants
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Chairman
DIN: 00066195

i"‘?ﬁ;;:;- Secretary

Membership No: F7266

Mumbai
23 April 2024

Godrej Tyson Foods Limited
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Statement of profit and loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations
Sale of products 26 98,107.73 100,293.19
Other operating revenue 26 527.67 18.66
Total Revenue From Operations 98,635.40 100,311.85
Other income 27 167.29 186.91
Total Income 98,802.69 100,492.76
Cost of materials consumed 28 62,828.87 74,861.12
Purchases of stock-in-trade 29 2,506.14 2,278.99
Changes in inventoties of finished goods, stock-in-trade and biclogical assets 30 1,667.64 (3,005.64)
Employee benefits expense 31 5,358.51 4,405.65
Finance costs 32 425,73 413.20
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 33 1,723.55 1,694.84
Other expenses 34 19,305.02 18,525.01
Total expenses 93,815.46 99,173.17
Profit before exceptional item and tax 4,987.23 1,319.59
Exceptional item 5I 629.44
Profit before tax z 4,357.79 1,319.59
Tax expense;
Current tax 44 956.25 226.58
Deferred tax charge 45 698.53 234.68
Total tax expense 1,654.78 461.26
Profit for the year after tax 2,703.01 I 858,33
Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit liability (expense)}/income (29.84) (25.57)
Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 10.43 8.94
Other comprehensive income o (19.41) (16.63)
Total comprehensive income 2,683.60 841.69
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted (face vatue per share INR 10 each) 35 1.158.98 431.54

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Godrej, ] yson Foods Limited

CIN: U15 O MH2008PLC177741
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Chartered Accountants
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Burjis Pardiwala N. Bi::drej
Pariner Chairman
Membership No: 103593 DIN: 00066195

2

Managing Director
DIN: 00294803
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-
M. Pathak ikash Biyani
Company Secretary & Tief Financigl Officer
Membership No: F7266 Membership No.: 066648
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Mumbai Mumbai
23 April 2024 23 April 2024




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Cwrrency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

A. Cash flow from gperating activities :

Net profit before tax

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation cxpenses
Exceptional item (net of cash outflow Rs. 72.92 lakhs) - refer note 51
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Finance costs

Bad debts written off

Interest income

Liabilities no longer required written back
Amortisation of government grant

Recovery of bad debts written off

Change in fair value of biological assets

Provision for [nventory

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/Decrease in inventorics
{Increase)Decrease in Biological Assets
{Increase) in trade receivables

(Increase) Decrease in other non-current assets
Decrease in other current assets
Increase{Decrease) in trade payables
In¢rease/{ Decrease) in non-current liabilities
Increase/{ Decrease) in current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net)
Net cash generated frem operating activities

B. Cash flow used in investing activities :

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Inter-corporate deposit placed

Inter-corporate deposit repaid

Interest received

(Investment)/Redemption of Fixed Deposit
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flow used in financing activities :

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-termn borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Repayment of short-term borrowings

Proceeds from inter-corporate deposits

Repayment of inter-corporate deposits

Interest paid

Lease rent paid

Net cash {used in) / generated from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No, 11) g

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

4,357.79 1,319.59
1,723.55 1,694.84
556.52
28.73 7.23
425.73 413.20
64.46 5.17
(57.32) (35.95)
(39.45) (15.49)
(31.47) (3147
- (1.48)
(502.13) (35.78)
123.49 229.19
 80.72 31.00
2,372.83 2,260.44
6,730.62 3,580.03
627.57 {2.103.84)
2,428.50 {1,740 .45)
(1,196.79) (1237.88)
167.69 (272.06)
43.72 120.60
(3,822.95) 4,740.30
3.27 (2.93)
{43.12) 344.98
(1,792.13) (150.76)
4,938.50 342027
(767.62) (215,93)
4,170.88 3,213.34
(3,545.76) (2,771.22)
(600.00) {100.00)
700.00 300.00
58.71 41.37
- 020
67.05 16.64
(3,319.99) (2,51301)
975.00 775.00
(875.61) (749.83)
10,185.00 8,739.12
(10,315.85) (8,993.22)
2,500.00 4,000.00
(2,500.00) (4,000.00)
(418.04) (394.37)
(60.18) (46.94)
(509.68) (670.24)
341.20 30.09
260.91 230.82
602,11 260.91




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Statement of cash flows (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Notes:

1

2

3

The Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in {Ind AS) 7 on “Statement of cash flows”, and presents
cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities,
Figures in brackets are outflows/deductions.

Change in financial liabilities arising from financing activity including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes:

[Particulars
Long-term borrowings
Shart-term borrowings

Total borrowings

1 April 2023 Cash flow Non-cash change 31 March 2024
2,299.17 9939 2,398.56
6,057.48 (130.91) 5,926.57
8,356.65 31.52) 8,325.13

Change in financial fiabilities arising from financing activity including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

[Particulars

Long-term borrowings
Short-term borrowings
Total bOITOWi!’lgS_

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

@wdm ke

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner
Membership No: 103595

Mumbai
23 April 2024

1 April 2022 Cash flow Non-cash change 31 March 2023
2,274.00 25.17 2,299.17
6,311.58 (254.10) 6,057.48
8,585.58 (228.93) - 8,356.65

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Managing Director
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Statement of changes in equity
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

{a)  Equity share capital

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 19.89 19.89
Changes in equity share capital during the current year — - -
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 19.89 19.89
(b)  Other equity
| Reserve and Surplus
Retained Earnings Securities Premium Total
Balance at 1 April 2023 2,601.69 13,454.16 16,055.85
Profit for the year 2,703.01 - 2,703.01
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of taxes) (19.41) - (19.41)
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2,683.60 - 2,683.60
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,285.29 13,454.16 18,739.45 |
Balance at 1 April 2022 1,759.99 13,454.16 1521415
Profit for the year 858.33 858.33
Other comprehensive income for the year (16.63) (16.63)
Total comprehensive income for the year 841,70 841,70 |
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,601.69 13,454.16 16,055.85

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Burjis Pardiwala

Partner
Membership No: 103595

Mumby
23 Aprii 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Godrej Tyson Foods Limited
CIN: U151 3 MHZ008PLC177741
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Rupees in lakhs)

1.1

1.2

(ii)

(iii)

General information

Godrej Tyson Foods Limited ("the Company™) is a limited company, which is domiciled and
incorporated in the Republic of India with its registered office situated at “Godrej One”, 3™
Floor, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East), Mumbai — 400 079.

The Company is a subsidiary of Godrej Agrovet Limited (GAVL), the India based Company
which holds 51% of the paid-up equity share capital. Tyson India Holdings Limited,
Mauritius, holds remaining 49% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. The
Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 117 anuary 2008.

The Company is mainly in Chicken processing business (fr.:sh and frozen) and also into
manufacturing and selling of Value-Added Chicken products. In addition to this, the
Company is into selling and marketing Vegetarian Value added products.

Basis of preparation and presentation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS:

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as
amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized

for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on-

237 April 2024,

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:

¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured 'at_fair_ value;
¢ Biological assets — measured at fair value less cost to sell; and

* Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value less present values of defined
benefit obligation

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All the financial information have been presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, except for share
data and as otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the
document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentage may not precisely reflect the
absolute figures.
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees)

1.3

Key estimates and assumptions

While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the management has made
certain estimates and assumptions that require subjective and complex judgments. These
judgments affect the application -of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of statement
of financial position and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting
period. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted and the best estimates require
adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgment, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

e Determination of the estimated useful lives

Useful lives of tangible assets and intangible assets are based on the life prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives of assets are
different from as prescribed in Schedule IT are based on technical advice, after taking
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support (refer note 2 and 3).

¢ Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations -

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the
post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and
its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period (refer note 46).

» Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and unused tax credits could be utilised (refer note 45).

¢ Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known
at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore,
vary from the amount included in other provisions.




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.3

14

Key estimates and assumptions (Continued)

e Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company
uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise
an option to terminate a lease, it considers ali relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not
to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there
is a change in the period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the
lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. (refer note
41).

s Rebates and sales incentive

Rebates and sales incentive are generally provided to distributors or customers as an
incentive to sell the Company’s products. Rebates and sales incentive are based on
purchases made during the period by distributor / customer. The Company determines
the estimates of rebate and sales incentive accruals primarily based on the contracts
entered into with their distributors / customers and the information received for sales
made by them.

¢ Biological Assets

Management uses inputs relating to production and market prices in determining the fair
value of biological assets (refer note 42).

Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values
for, both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair valucs, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in
a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

14

1.5

Measurement of fair values (Continued)

* Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.¢. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Material accounting policies

Current/non-current classification

Schedule 111 to the Act requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either current or non-
current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the entity’s
normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
{c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a) itis expected to be settled in, the entity’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

- All other liabilities are classified as non-current

, E.IUp'brating cycle



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Current/non-current classification (Continued)

Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current — non-current classification
of assets and liabilities. ‘

Revenue

i

ii.

iii.

Sale of goods

Revenue from operations comprises of sales of goods after the deduction of discounts,
goods and services tax. Discounts given by the Company includes trade discounts,
volume rebates and other incentive given to the customers. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate the provision for discounts. Revenue is only recognized to the
extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur.

Revenue from the sale of goods are recognised when control of the goods has
transferred to our customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations
to the customer. Depending on the contractual terms with the customers, this can be
either at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal acceptance by the customer.
This is considered the appropriate point where the performance obligations in our
contracts are satisfied as the Company no longer have control over the inventory.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised only when the right to receive the same is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company, and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
assets. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5

C

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency,
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences
that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the
Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as income and expenses in the
period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits

i. Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. Short-term employce benefits are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably. The Company has a scheme of Performance Linked Variable
Remuneration (PLVR) which rewards its employees based on Profit Before tax (PBT).
The PLVR amount is related to achievement of Profit Before tax (PBT) over the target
set for the period April to March which is fully charged to the Statement of Profit and
loss.

Short-term benefits such as salaries, wages, etc., are determined on an undiscounted
basis and recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii.  Defined contribution plans

The Company's contributions paid/payable to Regional Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance Scheme, Employees Pension Schemes, 1995, are determined under
the relevant approved schemes and/or statutes and are recognised as expense in the
Statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service. There are no further obligations other than the contributions payable
to the approved appropriate authoritics.

iii. Defined benefit plans

The following post — employment benefit plans are covered under the defined benefit
plans:

The Company's gratuity and leave encashment/long-term compensated absences
schemes are defined benefit plans. The Company's liability for the defined benefit
schemes is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method. The
Company's net obligations in respect of such plans is calculated by estimating the
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5

Material accounting policies (Continued)

amount of future benefit that the employees have eamed in return for their services and
the current and prior periods that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and
the fair value of the plan asset is deducted. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of profit and loss.

iv. Gratuity Fund

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based
on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Company.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognised assct is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement
of changes in equity and in the (OCI) balance sheet.

v, Other long-term employee benefits

Liability towards Long-term Compensated Absences are provided for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as at the date of the
Balance sheet. Actuarial gains / losses comprising of experience adjustments and the
effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss.

vi Terminal Benefits:

All terminal benefits are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to other comprehensive income (OCI).

i) Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable or (recoverable) in respect of the taxable
profit/ (tax loss) for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of the
Ingome-Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised
at'the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5

E.

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income Tax (Continued)

i)

Current tax {Continued)
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

*  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

*  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI is recognised in equity or
OCI and not in the statement of profit and loss.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) - the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are carried in the balance sheet as follows:

1.5
F.
a)
b)
G.
i)
/"/r:\":-—‘ ,__
";/—')) - . 'h 5 1'
/ M I.- i
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Raw materials, Packing Materials, Stock in trade and Stores and Spares: At lower of
cost, on weighted average basis and net realisable value.

Finished Goods-Manufacturing: At lower of cost of materials, plus appropriate
production overheads and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other related costs incurred in bringing the inventories to the present
location and condition. Slow and non-moving material, obsolescence, defective
inventories are duly provided for and valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of
balance sheet. Materials and supplies held for use inn the production of inventories are
not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to
be sold at or above cost.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

a)  its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b)  any costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

¢) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs
either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item
during a particular peried for purposes other than to produce inventories during
that period.

Income and expenses related to the incidental opérations, not necessary to bring the
item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful

~~i\1ives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items (major
- components) of property, plant and equipment,

*. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5

G.

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

i)  Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on property plant & equipment fixed assets is provided in accordance
with the provisions of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, on Straight Line
Methed. Depreciation on additions / deductions is calculated on pro rata basis from/up
to the month of additions/deductions. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Group Management estimate Useful life as per
of useful life schedule Il
{in year) {in year)
Property Plant & Equipment
Plant & Machinery 2to 20 10
Deep freezers and visicooler 7.5 10
Computer Hardware 4 4
Poultry handling Equipment 2 10
Moulds/Cylinders/mobile instruments 2 2 ‘
Leasehold improvement and
equipment Over lease period  Over lease period |
‘ Building 30 30
Furniture & Fixtures 10 10
Vehicles 8 8
Motor Cycles 10 10
Office and Other equipment 5 5
Laboratory Equipment 10 10
| Road other than RCC Carpet 5 5
| Right of use Assets
Over lease period  Over lease period

Leasehold land

For these class of assets, based on internal and external assessment, requirement of
refurbishments and past experience the management believes the useful life of the assets are
appropriate which are lower than those prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Assets costing less than INR. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase/acquisition.



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5 Material accounting policies (Continued)

H. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets viz. Marketing network / know-how, trademark and brands, technical
know-how fees, grant of licenses and computer software, which are acquired by the
Company and have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful lives as given below:
- Computer software : 6 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

L Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5 Material accounting policies (Continued)

i) Financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely
in the Statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss) or recognised
in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).

J. Financial Instruments (Continued)
i) Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised
cost (net of any write down for impairment) uniess the asset is designated at fair value
through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the
financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument
prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Initial recognition & measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not recorded at fair value through the Statement of profit and
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

*  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

Whgn the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
" has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has

retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor

.7 retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control

- of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
“the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5  Material accounting policies (Continued)

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model] for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢.g.
loans, deposits, and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables - The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after
considering the sanctioned credit limits, security like letters of credit, security
deposit collected etc. and expectations about future cash flows.

i) Financial liabilities

Classification
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through the Statement of profit and
loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently
measured at fair value.

J. Financial Instruments (Continned)

ii)

&

Financial liabilities (Continued)}

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable and incremental transaction
cost.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)
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o resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial lability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract, Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on
the assets associated with that contract.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5  Material accounting policies (Continued)

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow
of economic beneflt is probable.

Commitments includes the amount of purchase order (net of advance) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Provision, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

L. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately
from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the
underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of use assets
are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are

not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using

the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot

be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with

reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either

the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the

portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shail include fixed payments, variable lease

- payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company

is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penaltics for terminating the
“lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees)

1.5 Material accounting policies (Continued)

lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company
recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the
nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less, leases which have variable
payment and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

L. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed
for impairment if any indication of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets
exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess
amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value
in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an
appropriate discount factor that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a
revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer exists or may have decreased,
such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, to the
extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of profit and loss. In case of
revalued assets, such reversal is not recognised.

M. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

_ For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
'g: & Siﬁﬂ%en\n deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
/ ) ,_;ppt].iié\le?gc\[\an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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Material accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants / subsidies

Grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an asset, the cost of the asset is shown at gross value and grant
thereon is treated as a deferred grant which is recognised as income in the Statement of Profit
and Loss over the period and in proportion in which depreciation is charged.

Revenue grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period as the
related cost which they are intended to compensate are accounted for.

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell, with any change therein
recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

The basic Eamings Per Share (“EPS™) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) afier
tax for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Statement of Cash flows

'fh&(}\c\pany s statements of cash flows are prepared using the Indirect method, whereby
pfoﬁt’ for.the period is adjusted for the effect of transaction of a non-cash nature, any
defcrrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payment and item of income
or expehses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from

"fopcratmg, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. ,_-2:'{'5'0 N,c:\
iic}_;_a .":3/,-—\\01*\
: 4 el
T || o (\“"U’ﬂsm ) Dﬂ
wo
“Q\\o\x—{é\'f\ /
e, X ot
e



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited
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1.5 Material accounting policies (Continued)

T. Statement of Cash flows (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term fixed bank
deposits that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank
overdrafts and cash credit facility that form an integral part of the company's cash
management.

U. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted with the IND
AS financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or
nature are only disclosed.

Recent pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For
the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards applicable to the Company
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

3

Intangible assets

Description of assets Computer software Total
Cost as at 31 March 2024
Asat | April 2023 653.26 653.26
Additions 24.84 24.84
Disposals (2.60) (2.60)
As at 31 March 2024 675.50 675.50
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2024
Asat | April 2023 463,72 463.72
Amortisation charge for the vear 95.02 95.02
Disposals (2.46) (2.46})
As at 31 March 2024 556.28 556,27
Net Book Value as at 31 March 2024 119.21 119.22
Cost as at 31 March 2023
Asat | April 2022 653.12 653.12
Additions 0.14 0.14
Disposals - ]
As at 31 March 2023 633.26 653.26 !
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2023
Asat 1 April 2022 369.44 369.44
Amortisation charge for the year 94.28 94.28
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2023 463.72 463,72
Net Book Value as at 31 March 2023 189.54 189.54
As at 31 March 2024
. Amount in Intangible Asset under Development for a period of
Intangible Asset under Development
& sset {der Developmg Eess than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Project In Progress - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - - -
Total - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
: " f od of
Intangible Asset under Development Amount in Intangible Asset under Development for a period o
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Project In Progress 3.65 9.68 - 13.33
|- Praject temparan|y suspended - - - -
{ Fotal 3.65 9.68 = - 13.33 |

Ihe C ompa;;}; + ot revalued its intangible assets; hence related disclosures are not applicable




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

4 Biological assets other than bearer plants

PS Bird 3,716.40 5,203.65
Hatching eggs 862.11 1,159.98
Contract farm - Broiler 3,625.36 3,676.60
Total (Refer Note 42) 8,203.87 10,130.23
Non-current 913.37 345.38
Current 7.,290.50 9,784.85

5 Non-Current Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

To parties other than related parties
Loan to employees 6,36 16.28

Total 6.36 16.28

Break up of loan to employees

Leans teceivables considered pood - secured

Leans receivables considered good - unsecured 6.36 16.28
Loans receivable which have significant increase in credit sk

Loans receivables - credit impaired

Total 6.36 16,28

6 Other non-current financial assets

Security deposits* 484.43 636.58

Total 484,43 636.58
*Security Deposit pertains to PS Bird farm and government authorities related o vat matters

7

e 293.34 9k1.45

iy

293.34 981,45

f
\o
\



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs}

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

] Other non-current assets

Capital advances 181 R10.84
Prepayment 8.11 13.72
Total 9.92 824.56

9 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials and Packing Material 1,697.80 2,652.21
Finished goods 2,398.17 2,107.62
Stock-in-trade 349.89 381.72
Stores and spares 294.13 349.30
Total 4,739.99 5.491.05
The write down / (reversal of write-down) of inventories to net realisable value as at Balance sheet date 123.49 229.19

10  Trade receivables

i Secured and considered good** 369.44 415.39
ii.  Unsecured considered good 4,990.00 3892.44
iii  Credit Impaired 468.78 407.30
Less : Loss allowance (468.78) (407.30}
Total 5.359.44 4,307.83

10.1  As at March 31, 2024

____ Outstanding for following periods from due date of parment

i | Not Due <6 months | 6 months to{ vear| 1-Zvears | 2.3 years | more than 3 s ears
\Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 3.512.05 1,765.01 8238 - - 335944
Uadisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant |
increase in credit risk -
Tindispoted Trade receivable - credit impaired 1 69.21 79.86 66.98 69,73 68.32 354.10
Edisputed Trade Receivables - considered wood - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk

Disjuted Trade receivable — credit impraired | 68,63 46.04 114.67
| [ 3 512.05 |  1.834.22 | 162.24 65.98 138.36 11436 || 5,828.21 |

'Particulars —

Toial |

Relationship with Stuck off Companies

|Name of Struck off Companies Nature of Transactions Transactions Balance Outstanding as at Relationship with the struck off
during the year company
; March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 — |
IMad.haL-ur New Cafe Hospitalil RGC Sale 16.85 3.30 Non-Related Part

10.2  As at March 31, 2023

Particulars | ) Outstanding for I’n_lluwinr. periods from due date of payient o | Total
| Not Due < b months | 6 hsto1year | 1-2years | 2~ 3 vears | more than 3 years |
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 3.042.23 1,240,74 24.86 - 4,307.83

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have seignificant
merease in credit risk :

Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - 24.69 3442 95,01 742 131.08 292.61
Disputed Trade Receivables — considered pood - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk -
Disputed Trade receivable - credit impaired | =l - I - 46.86 67.82 - | 114.68 |
3.042.23 1.265.43 5928 | 141.87 75.24 131,08 | | ~4,715,13 |

*+Secured by security deposits of INR 339.37 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 390.68 lakhs) collected from customers and bank guarantees of INR 86.50
lakhs {31 March 2023: INR 105.80 lakhs) held against them.

Relationship with Stuck off Companies

[Name of Struck off Companies WNature of Transactions Transactions Balance Ountstanding as at  Relationship with the struck off cormpany
March 31, 2023 March 31 2023




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

11  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 20.1% 1341
Balarnces with banks:

- Current aceounts 581.92 247.50
Total ; 602.11 260.91

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits {maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months)* 726 746

Total 7.26 746

*Fixed deposits of INR 7.46 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 7.46 lakhs) are kept as earest money deposit

13 Current loans
{Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and advances to employees 46.21 48.23
Loans granted {Refer Note No 36) 25.00 25.00
Intercorporate Deposit Placed (Refer Note 36) “ 100.00
Total — 7121 173.23

Break up of corrent loans
Loans receivables considered good - secured :
Loans recsivables considered good - unsecured .21 173.23

Laans receivable which have significant increase in credit 1isk -
Loans receivables - credit ianpaired v -
7121 17323

14  Qther current financial assets

Interest accraed but not dae on fixed deposits 1.68 1.53
Interest Accrued on other Deposits . 134
Export Incentive 0.08 4.67
Security Deposits* 11.61 10.92
Totzl 13.37 18.46

*Security Deposit pertains to Parent farm and government authorities

15 Other current assets

Advances o suppliers 31047 202,46
Balance with government authorities* 238,32 622.10
146.62 140.16

208.23 355.73

900.64 1,320.45




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as al 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

16  Equity Share capital

Authorised :
300,000 (31 March 2023: 300,000) equity shares of INR 10/~ each 30.00 30.00
Total 30.00 30.00

Tssued, subscribed and paid-up:
192,900 (31 March 2023: 198.900) equity shares of INR 10/- each, fully paid 19.89 19.89

Total 19.89 19.89

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of Shares INR Number of Shares INR
Equity shares :
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 198,900 19.89 198,900 19.89
Issned during the year - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year . 198,200 15.89 198,900 19.39
Righis, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each sharcholder is eligible for one vote per share held. All equity
shareholders are efigible 1o receive dividend in proportion to their shareholding. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors ate subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 10 receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in propertion to their shareholding.
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:
o 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up are held Number of shares Percentage Number of Percentage
by: shares
Godrej Agrovet Limited 101,439 51.00% 101,439 51,00%
Tyson India Holdings Limited 97,461 49.00% 97,461 49.00%
198,900 100% 198,904 100%
Shares held by promoters at the end of éhe year as at 31 March 2024
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Promoter Name Number of shares % of total Number of % of total shares % Change during
shares  shares the year
Godrej Agrovet Limited 101,439 51.00% 141,439 51.00% Nil
Tyson India Holdings Limited 97,461 49,00% 97,461 49.00% Nil
198,900 100% 198,900 100% Nil
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year as at 31 March 2023
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Promoter Name Number of shares % of total Number of % of total shares % Change during
shares shares the year
Godrej Agrovet Limited 101,439 51.00% 101,439 51.00% Nil
Tyson India Holdings Limited 97,461 49.00% 97,461 49.00% Nil
198,900 100% 198,900 100% Nil
17  Other equity
Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year 2,601.69 1,759.99
Add : Profit for the year 2,703.01 858.33
. “Aﬂd_ Other comprehensive income (net of taxes} (19.41) {16.63)
 Total re‘tamed earnings 5,285.29 2,601.69
eaurfhes premlum 13,454.16 13,454.16
i —
al othene'quity 18.739.45 16,055.85

‘a,nl e prm pm’mmm
. ,&eaﬁih {‘prﬁﬁnum is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The Securities premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Comy



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rapees in lakhs)

18

19

20

21

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Unsecured
Term loans from Bank 1,580.48 1,521.09
Tatal 1,580.48 1.521.09

Short-term borrowings

Unsecured

Cash credit from banks 931.57 231248
Working capital loans from banks 4,995.00 3745.00
Current Maturities of Long term loan from bank $18.08 778.08
Tatal 6,744.65 6 83556

Nate 18,1; Term loans from banks for the year ended 31 March 2024 are at an Interest Rate ranging from 4.75% 1o 8.16% (31 March 2023: 4,75% to 7.60%). Term loan INR 200 lakh
repayable in quarterly installment of TINR 100 lakhs each and Term Loan INR 91605 lakh repaybale in 11 quarterly installnent of INR. 83.27 lakhs and Term Loan TNR 1282.50 lakh
repayable in 18 equal quarterly installment of INK 71.25 lakh from the date of the financial statement

Note 18.2: Cash credit from banks are repayable on demand and carries interest rate ranging from 7% to 9% per annwn (31 March 2023: 4.75% to 8.60% per annum),

Note 18.3: Working capital loans from banks for the year ended 31 March 2024 are at an interest rate ranging from 7.25.% to 8% (31 March 2023 :4.10% to 7.65% per annum) and zre
repayable within the next 3 month from the date of the financial statement

Note 18.4: The Company has complied with the requirement of filing of quarterly returos/statements of current assets {Trade receivables and Inventory) with the banks or financial
institutions, wherever applicable, and these retumns were in agreement with the books of accounts for the period ended 30th June 2023, 30th September 2023, 315t December 2023, 315t
March 2024

Note 18.5 The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken.

Other non-current financial liabilities

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 41) 60.23 50.19

Total 60.23 50.1¢

Other current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 41) 30.37 46.69

Total 30.37 46.69

Long term provisions

Provision for employee benefits :
- Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 46) 3749 34,22

Total 37.49 34,22

Other non carrent ligbilities
Govetnment grant 318.45 349.92

Taotal 318.45 349.92
Note 21.1 : INK 500 Lakhs Capital subsidy received from Ministry of Food Processing Industries for setting up fruit and vegetable products processing unit under the
scheme of Cretion’Expansion of Food Processing and preservation Capacities,which is amortised over the useful life of the assets.

( mumaat) &

|
=4



Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency; Indian rupees in lakhs)

22

Trade payables

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {Refer Note 22.1} 673.48 213.90
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,810.37 12,132.35
Total 8.483.85 12,146.25
Trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024

Particolars Qutstanding for l'o]lowin-g periods fram due date of payment

[ T Total
serued Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3years | mare than 3 years

i ._Expenses |

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - 65242 21.05 673.47
enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1.835.48 5,743.38 198.26 3.86 16.37 I g.02 7,810.37
enterprises and small enterprises |

Bisputed dues of micro enterprises and small enerprises -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises - - ’

\and small enterprises | | . -

1.835.48 6.195.80 219.31 8.86 16.37 l 8.02 8.483.84

Relationship with Stuck off Companies

'Name of Struck off Companies Nature of Transactions Transactions Balance Outstanding as at Relationship with the struck off

during the year company

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 N
‘Star Freiy~t Private Ltd Exgense 5.03 1.01 Non-Related Purty
Trade payable ageing schedule as at 37 March 2023
Particulars T g Qutstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment

Accrued | Total
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 - 3years | more than 3 years
Expenses R |
Total ontstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 185,02 28.88 | - 21380
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1,487.31 9,919.34 285.00 250,73 184,79 512 12,132.35
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises - - -
and small enterprises
. 1.487.31 10 104.36 313.94 250.73 184,79 i 5.12 12,346.25

Relationship with Stuck off Companies
Name of Struck off Companies Nature of Transactions Transactions Balance Outstanding as at ~ Relationship with the struck off company

during the vear

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024

Note 22.1: During the year, Micro small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have
been identified by the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company and the auditors have relied on the same.

Particulars

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid
Interest due thereon

et 'rmd!l,ﬂtp_r\ interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Amount of interest paid by the Compaty in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment - -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

Amonnt of interes! due and payzble for the year of delay in making payment (which have beer paid but beyond the appointed - -
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED, 2006

673.48 213,90
0.57 0.86
0.57 0.86

‘I-‘haammuﬂ f further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - -
% as. @hnve are ﬁ%tually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

23

24

Other financial liabilities

Security deposits

Interes{ accrued but not due

Employee payables

Payable for capital geods

Provision for bonus

Others {includes payable towards expense)

Total

Other current liabilities
Employee deductions
Statutory liabilities
Government grant

Total

Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 3] March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

25

Current provisions

1. Provision for Employee Benefit
- Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 46)
- Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 46)

2. Provision for sales tax liability

Fotal

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

931.38 965.97
35.62 38.45
50.58 5422

628.80 269.73

677.06 283.7%

3.15 21175
2.126.59 1.823.85
114 1.18

32429 292.50
3147 31.47

35690 325.15

573 527
69.86 63.11
- 2432
7559 92.70




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

26

27

28

29

—

Revenue from operations

Sale of products (net) (refer Note 48)

Other operating revenue

Sale of scrap and empties
Fair value of Biological Assets {refer Note 42}

Total

Other income

Interest income on

- Fixed deposits with banks

- Inter-corporate deposils

- Others

- Income Tax

Insurance claims received

Liabilities no longer required written back
Recovery of bad debis

Amortisation of government grant {refer Note 21)
Other miscellaneous income

Total

Cost of materials consumed
Materials at the commencement of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Materials sold

Less: Materials at the close of the year

Total cost of materials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

.M.Yﬁnlli?_ added products
N

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

98,107.73 100,293.19
98,107.73 100,293.19
25,54 18.66
502.13
527.67 18.66
98,635.40 100,311.85
5.58 0.16
44,24 29.09
7.33 6.70
0.17 -
6.45 2.06
39.45 15.49
- 148
31.47 3147
32.60 94,46
167.29 180.91
2,652.21 2,033.06
61,976.08 75,543.62
10162 63.35
64,526.67 77,513.33
1,697.80 2,652.21
62,828.87 T 7486112
2,506.14 2,278.99
B 2,506.14 2,278.99




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

30

31

32

33

"
Z5

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and biological

assets

Stocks at the commencement of the year
Finished goods

Biotogical assets

Stock-in-trade

Total stock at the commencement of the year

Less : Stocks at the close of the year
Finished goods

Biological assets

Stock-in-trade

Total stock at the end of the year

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and biological assets

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus and allowances
Contribution o provident, gratuity and other funds (refer note 46)
Staff welfare expense

Total

Finance costs

Interest on :-

Cash credit

Term loan

Working capital loan
Inter-corporate deposit
Lease Liabilities

Total

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note: Finance costs are net of expenses capitalised under project INR 79.81 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR Nil ).

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Qgp,rematmn and amortisation of Property, plant and equipment
/xﬁlt@wa‘ﬁe f intangible assets

A~
/Wa\ OF% ight of use assets

2,107.62 1,202.59
10,130,23 §,354.00
381,72 57.34
12,619.57 9,613.93
2,398.17 2,107.62
8,203.87 10,130.23
349.89 381.72
10,951.93 12,61957

1,667.64 (3,003.64)
4,600.01 3,800.86
258,15 24345
500.35 361.34
5,358.51 4,405.65
91.62 102.21
91.33 7501
227.02 22078
524 596
10.52 8.34
425,73 413.20
1,568.10 1,551.29
95.02 94.28
60.43 4927
1,723.55 1,694 .84




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

34

Other expenses

Stores and spares consumed
Water charges
Power and fuel
Processing charges
Storing and freezing
Rent (refer note 41)
Rates and taxes
Repairs and maintenance
(a) Machinery
(b) Building
(c) Other assets
Insurance
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 34.1 below)
Legal and professional fees
Freight
Advertisement and publicity
Selling and distribution expenses
Travelling expenses
Bad debts writien off
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Net foreign exchange loss
Corporate social responsibility (refer note no 38)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total
Note 34.1: Auditor's remuneration (inclusive of taxes)

(a) Audit fees
(b) Reimbursement of expenses

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

609.88 740.85
155.66 160.43
1,492.76 1,448.35
10,383.48 10,733.07
231.13 218.08
450.29 41697
46.60 31.82
524.66 421.45
3.81 20.94
93.42 50.02
80.59 81.56
23.44 22.12
38278 238.84
1,584.99 1,417.38
1,411.89 1,094.48
163.87 143.57
713.69 644.53
64.46 5.17
80.72 31.00
28.73 7.23
247 1.56
25.98 -
749.72 595.59
19.305.02 18,525.01

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

20.81 20.95
2,63 1.17
23.44 22.12




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs}

35 Earnings per share

Particulars

Profit after tax atiributable to equity shareholders

Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Basic earnings per share (INR)
Diluted earnings per share (INR})
Face value per share (INR)

31 March 2024

2,703.01
198,900
198,900
198,900

1,358.93
1,358.98
10

31 March 2023

858.33
198,900
198,900
198,900

431.54

431.54
10

36 Disclosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board

and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

Details of loans given (net) by the Company are as follows:

Name of the entity

Saishawara Hatcheries
Prima foodtech Private Limited (refer note 36.1 below)

Name of the entity

Saishawara Hatcheries
Prima foodtech Private Limited (refer note 36.1 below)

I

Note 36.1: Terms of Loans

. Loan given Repaid during the As at
Agit 1 daril 2023 during the year year 31 March 2024
25,00 - - 25.00
100.00 600,00 700.00 -
. Loan given Repaid doring the As at
Asarl Agril 2022 during the year year 31 March 2023
2500 - - 25.00
300,00 100.00 300.00 100.00

Prima Foodtech Private Limited

Purpose of utilisation of loan given to the entities
Loan repayment terms

Rate of Interest

|Saishawara Hatcheries
Purpose of utilisation of loar given to the entities

Loan repayment terms

31 March 2024

Working Capital
Repayable in Cne Year
9.50% per annum

Werking Capital
Repayable on demand
12% per annum

31 March 2023

Working Capital
Repayable in One Year
9.50% perannum

Working Capital
Repayable on demand

12% per annuml
J




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
37  Capital commitments
Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of 483.35 3,012.68
advances), to the exient not provided for
483.35 3.012.68

38 Corporate social responsibility
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 a CSR Committee has been formed by the Company. The funds are utilised during the year

on activities which are specified in schedule VII of the Act. The utilisation is done by the way of direct contribution towards various
activities. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year INR 25.98 lakhs (31 March 2023; INR Nil).

Total expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility activities during the current year is INR 17.23 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR

Nil)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amount required to be spent by the compaay during the year 25.98 -
Amount spent during the year on
(i) Construction facquisition of any assets
(ii) On purposes other than (1) above 17.23
Shortfall at the end of the vear* 8.75

Detai] of related party transaction -

*The shortfall as on 31 March 2024 would be transferred by company to the unspent account within six months from the expiry of
financial year as permitted under the second proviso to 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
39 Contingent liabilities

(i) Value added tax demands relating to disputed classification, assessable values, 359.17 1,113.67
availment of credit efc. which the Company has coniested and is in appeal at varicus levels

(ii) Availment of Goods Service Tax input tax credit disputed values, which the Company 509.55
has contested and is in appeal at various levels

(iii} Sales tax demands relating to Non- submission of declaration forms which the - 7.36
Company has contested and is in appeal with Joint Commissioner of sales tax, Mumbai

(iv) The company has preferred an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax 7.12 7.12
{ Appicili) against the order of Assessing officer

875.84 1,128.16 '_
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39.1

40

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (“SC™) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshni Limited & others v/s
EPFQ, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the
purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. The Company has started complying with this prospectively from the month of
March 2019, In respect of the past period there are significant implementation and interpretative challenges that the management is facing
and is awaiting for clarity to emerge in this regard, pending which, this matier has been disclosed under the Contingent liabilities section in
the financial statements. The impact of the same is not ascertainable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
("CODM?™) of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Managing Director (MD) and Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the Company. The Company has identified only
one segment i.e. Pouliry and processed foods as reporting segment based on the information reviewed by CODM.

There are no transactions with single external customers which amounts to 10% or more of the Company’s revenue.

i—
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41  Leases

i} Right-of-use assets:

Particulars

Cost

Asat 1 April 2023
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 31 March 2024

Accumnulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2023

Amortisation

Eliminated on disposals of assets
Balance at 31 March 2024

Cost

Asat 1 April 2022
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April 2022

Amortisation

Eliminated on disposals of assets
Balance at 31 March 2023

Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 March 2024
As at 1 April 2023

Leasehold land

1,159.74

1,199.74

67.05
12.52

79.57

1,199.74

1,199.74

54,53

12.52

67.05

1,120.17
1,132.60

Buildings

188.52
89.46
(52.59)
22545

99.77

47.91

{8.62)
139.06

11126
88.00
(10.74)

188.52

70.52
36,75
(7.50)
99.77

86.39
88.75

Total

1,388.26
89.46

(52.53)
1,425.19

166.82
60.43
(8.62)

218.63

1,311.00

§8.00
{10.74)

1,388.26

125.05
49.27
{7.50)

166.81

1,206.55
1,221.44

ii) Lease expenses (rent) recognised in the statement of profit and loss

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of ali assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less, leases which have variable payment and leases for which the underlymmg asset
is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Particulars

Shent-term lease expense
Variable lease expense

Total lease expense

Cash outflow on leases

Particulars

Repayment of lzase liabilities
Interest on Jease liabilities
Short-term lease expense
éq;ab]'etle se expense

AN

[ Iy

/é,'/" “‘::\4’ Ve Xy

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
172.45 181.75
277.85 235.22
450.30 416.97

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
60.18 46.29
10,52 834
172.45 181,75
277.85 23522
521.00 471.60

|| Tota} cash outilow on leases
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41 Disclosure as per IND AS 116 on leases (Continued)
The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payable, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be paid after the

reporting date
Maturity analysis
Tuotal Carrying Total Lease Less than Between ] ard  Over 3 years Weighted average|
amount payable 1 year 5 years effective interest rate
o,
Yo
31 March 2024
Lease liabilities 90,60 108.09 31.12 76.97 9%||

31 March 2023
|Lease tiabifities 96.88 126,19 48.97 48.18 29.04 9%
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42  Biological assets other than bearer plants

A, Reconciliation of carrying amount

3t March 2024

|Particulars Amount
Balance as 1 April 2023 10,130.23
Add: Purchases 8.988.29
Add: Change in fair value less cost 10 sell 502.13
Add: Transferred to finished goods 23,734.16
Less: Sales/ disposals (35,150.96)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 8,203.87
31 March 2023
Particulars T Amount
Balance as 1 April 2022 8,354.00
Add: Purchases 10,826.76
Add: Change in fair value less cost to sell 35.78
Add: Transferred to finished goods 38,632.10
Less: Sales/ disposals (47,718.41)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 10,130.23
——————————

B. Measurement of Fair value

i. Fair Value hierarchy

The fair value measurements for PS birds, hatching eggs, broilers has been categorised as Level 3 fair values based on the inputs (o valuation

technique used.

ii. Level 3 Fair values

The following table shows a break down of the total gains/(losses) recognised in respect of Level 3 fair values-

Particulars

Change in fair value (realised)

Change in fair value (unrealised)

Gain included in 'Changes in inventories of finished goods, siock-in-trade and biological assets'

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

502.13 3578
(2,068.67) (2,032.89)|
2,570.81 2,068.67

ifi. Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Type

Biclogical assets - it comprises of:

Hatching eggs; and
Contract farm- Broilers

Valuation technique

As per relevent market price
PS Bird; prevailing at the year end

Significant
unobservable inputs

Estimated price of each companent

- PS birds - INR 28.58 (31 March 2023:
INR 33,87) per Hatching eggs,

- Hatching eggs - INR 40.20 (31 March
2023: INR 39.87) per Day Old Chicks,

- Contract farms- Broilers (average rate} -
INR 115.00 (31 March 2023: INR

74.00¢ per kg for live bird

Inter-relationship between
significant unebservable inputs
and fair value measurement

The estimated fair valuation would
increase/(decrease) if

- Estimated price of each
component of poultry stock was
higher/(lower)

(ra o Fas). ..&"/
ey £ATE3
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42  Biological assets (Continued)
C. Risk Management strategies related to poultry activities
The Company is exposed to the following risks relating to its poultry operation:
i. Regulatory and environmental risks
The Company is subject to laws and regulations in the country in which it operates. It has established various environmental policies and
procedures aimed at compliance with the local environmental and other laws,
ii. Supply and demand risks
The Company is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the price of Hatching Eggs, Commercial Day Old Chicks and Live Birds. When
prices goes down the management possibly manages this risk by diverting more Live birds for processing and when prices goes up, the
management sells more Hatching eggs, Day old chicks and Live birds.
iii Climate and other risks
The Company's Live stock is exposed to the extreme c¢limatic changes in summer and winter season, However, the Company has extensive
processes in place aimed at monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular health inspections of Live Stock and adopting industry
best practices by professional qualified veterinarian doctors,
A reasonably possible change of 10% in Estimated fair value of Live stock at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or
foss by the amounts shown below.
- ) Profit or less for the )"ear ended Profit or loss for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- 10% Increase 10% Decrease 10% Increase  10% Decrease
o E‘:::‘\
: IR
A Lstimater é\];a\nge in valuation of biological assets 463.27 (463.27) 1,062.74 {1,062.74)
Q} TMETIEE "y )

Q) xdmaih | &/
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43 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

43.1 Accounting classification and fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are
presented below. It does not include the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if
the carrying amount is a reasenable appreximation of fair value.

Carrying amount Fair value

31 March 2024 FVTPL FVOCI  Amortised Total Levell ilevel2Z Level3 Total
Cost

Financial assets
Non-current financial assets
Loans - - 6.36 6.36 - - - -
Security deposits - - 48443 484.43 - - - -
|Currem financial assets
Trade receivables - - 5,359.44 5,359.44 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 602.11 602.11 - -
Bank balance other than cash and cash 126 126 - - - -
equivalents
Loans - - 71.21 71.21 - - -
Others - - 13.37 13.37 - - -

- 6,544.18 6,544.18 - - = =

Financial liabilities

\Non-current financiol liabilities
Bomowings - - 1,580.48 1,580.48 - - -
Lease liabilities - - 60.23 60.23 - - -

Current financial Eabilities

Borrowings 6,744.65 6,744.65 - - - -
Lease Habilities - 30.37 30.37

Trade payables - 8,483.85 8,483.85 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 2,326.59 2,326.59 - - - ~

1922617 1922617 B - -

Carrying amount Fair value
i March 2023 FVIFL  FVOCI Am““(‘,s:; Total Levell Level2 Level3  Total
Financial assets
Non-current financiel assets
Loans 16.28 16.28 - - -
Security deposits 636,58 636,58 - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables - 4,526.87 4,526.87 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 260.91 260.91 -
Bank balance other than cash and cash - 746 7.46 - - -
equivalents
Loans - 173.23 173.23 - - -
Others - 18.46 18.46 - - -

N = 563979  5,639.79 - - = =

Financial liabilities

Non-current Financial ligbilities
Bomowings - - 1,521.09 1,521.09 - - -
Lease liabilities - - 50,19 50.19 - - -

Current financial liabilities
- 6,835.56 6,835.56 - - - -

- 46.69 46,69
Trads:payables ", - 1234625 1234625 - - -
EAhr ko) ibilfics - - 1,82385  1823.85 - - -
i - - 2262363  22,623.63 - - -
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43 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
43.1 Accounting classification and fair values (Centinued)

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure (o the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk ;

* Liquidity risk ;

= Market risk ; and

= Currency risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s management has overall responsibility for the establishrhent and oversight of the Company's tisk management
framework. The management is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to moniter risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and managemeni standards and
procedures, aims 1o maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
P ,re\qaws__he adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted
/ :&HL vi+iighit role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes hoth regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and

< JT"’-'I."]I-I es{‘? 1isults of which are reported to the audit committee.
i Figor,
{.‘entra} R ",mr. and

( MUMSAI )m
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43
43.2

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and advances.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade receivables and loans and advances.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the geography in which it operates.
Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which
the Company granis credit terms in the normal course of business.

Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Further, for domestic sales, the Company segments the customers into Distributors,
Institution, Quick service restaurant (QSR) and Others for credit monitoring.

The Company maintains security deposits for sales made to its distributors. For other trade receivables, the Company individually monifors the
sanctioned credit limits as against the outstanding balances. Accordingly, the Company makes specific provisions against such trade receivables as
per company policy (120 to 180 days 25%, >180 to 365 days 50%, >365 days 100%) and monitors the same at periodic intervals.

The Company monitors each loans and advances given and makes any specific provision wherever required.

The Company establishes an allowance For impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables and loans and
advances.

In assessing the recoverability of receivables and other financial assets, the Company has considered internal and external information up to the date
of approval of these financial statements. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

The maxtmum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by type of counterparty was as follows:

Carrying amount
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade and other receivables 5,359.44 4,307.83
Domestic
Distributors 856.66 890.51
Institution 1,507.32 1,936.02
GSR-Modern Trade 2,707.56 1,199.98
Other 287.90 281.32
Total 5,359.44 4,307.83
Impairment

The ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due 1-30 days 4,483.10 3,852.25
Past due 31-90 days 533.59 383.58
Pasi due 91180 days 199,79 34,22
> 180 days 142.96 37.78
5,359.44 4,307.83
—
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the v ear was as follows:
Trade receivables  Other reccivables|
Balance as at 1 April 2023 407.30 -
Impairment loss recognised 64,46 -
Provision during the year 61.48 19.24
Write back/utilisation during the year {64.46) -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 468.78 19.24
Halance as al | April 2022 445.56 22.59
Impair loss recognised 5.17 -
Frivduion dyriog the year 31.00
Write back utilisation during the year (74.43) (22.99)
Balance as st 31 March 2023 407.30 -
Cash and cash equivalents ;/ ;QES“ o m\

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 602.11 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 260.91 lakhs). The cash and cash equivalentj *Bheld with
banks and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating, o f MUMEA ’
O\

\
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43  Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Continued)

43.3 Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company had unutilised credit limits from banks of INR 1,070.16 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 1062.49 lakhs).

Exposure te liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted,
and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

| Contractual cash flows

31 March 2024 Carrying Total 0-6 months 6-12 menths  1-2Zyears 2-5 years More than
amount 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Term loans from hanks 2,398.56 2,398.56 509.04 309.04 1,236.16 344.32

Cash credit from bank 931.57 931.57 931.57 -

Working capital loans from banks 4,995.00 4,995.00 4,995.00 - -

Lease Liabilities 920.59 90.59 15.18 15.18 60.23 -

Tracle payables- others 8,483.85 8,483.85 8,483.85 - - -

Security deposit 931.38 931.38 931.38 - - -

Amount due for payment to gratuity fund 69.86 69.86 69.86 - - -

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 35.62 35.62 35.62 - - - -

Other financial ligbilities 1,359.59 1,359.59 1,359.59 - - -

Total 19,296.02  19,296.02  17,331.09 324,22 1,296.39 344.32 -

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2023 Carrying Total (-6 months  6-12 months 1-2 years  2-5 years More than §
amount years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Term loans from banks 2,299.17 2729917 366.54 411.54 1,046.16 474,93
Cash credit from bank 2,312.48 2,312.48 231248 -
‘Working capital loans from banks and acceptances 3,745.00 3,745.00 3,743.00 -
Lease Liabilities 96.88 96.88 23.34 23.34 50.19
Trade payables- others 12,346.25 12,346.25 12,346.25 - -
Security deposit 965.97 965.97 965.97 - . -
Amount due for payment to gratuity fund 63.11 63.11 63.11 - -
= 'mgr-e@ peeril but not due on borrowings 3845 38.45 3845 - -
5 ?J-i'_ﬁ‘;@?ikc{a{k}};hilities 819.43 819.43 819.43 - -
: ‘ \ 22,686.74  22,686.74  20,680.57 434,88 1,096.35 474.93 -
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43 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
43.4 Interestrisk

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in
fair values of fixed interest bearing financial asseis or borrowings because of fluctuations in the interest rates, if such assets/borrowings

are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest
bearing borrowings will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as

follows,
Nominal amount
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 84.83 196.97
Financial liabilitics 3,329.94 3,265.14
(3,245.11) {3,008.17)

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets - .
Finagcial liabilities 5,926.57 6,05748

(5,926.57) (6,057.48)

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments
The Company's fixed rate borrowings and fixed rate bank deposits are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest

rate risk as defined in Tnd AS 107, since neither the carrying amount ner the future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change in market
interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

31 March 2024 Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

INR in lakhs 100 bp increase 104 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Variable-rate instruments (59.27) 59.27 (38.56) 38.56

Cash flow sensitivity (aet) (59.27) = 59.27 (38.56) 38.56

31 March 2023 Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

INR 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Variable-rate instruments (60.57) 60,57 (3041) 3941

Cash flow sensitivity (net) {6(0.57) 60.57 (39.41) 39.41
— _, "  a=——

,-»:;“:_z::-: -

// ‘?‘ & LThe, Es](\ timaies provided assume a change of 100 basis points interest rate for the interest rate benchmark as applicable o the
/ @ ~ e owangs uminarised above. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated
/ cenia b bided ony ris \exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt

Horth 5
Rese2 outstand g1 Qigmg the period.
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43 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

43.5 Currency risk

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within accepiable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Board of Directors and its Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Company's risk assessment and management policies.
The major market risks of foreign exchange, interest rate and counter-party risk are managed centrally by Company's treasury department,
which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management.

The Company has a written treasury policy, and reconciliations of the Company's positions with counter-parties are performed at regular
intervais.

The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that between 80% and 90% of its interest rate risk exposure is at a fixed rate. Hence, interest
rate risk is covered by entering into fixed-rate instruments to ensure varability in cash flows attributable to interest rate risk is minimized.

Currency risk
/// :i‘he f‘q_ﬁcuqni! currency of Company is primarily the local currency in which it operates. The currencies in which these transactions are
,- \** /pfmzarﬁydeﬁmg‘g\mated are INR, The Company is not exposed to currency risk in respect of transactions in foreign currency as there is no
i
G_” Jﬂ 1 ,_,, goeiv abif(\or payable in foreign currency as at 31 March 2024,
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44

(a)

{b)

e %‘. - ’:‘

Tax expense

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax 956.25 226.58
Adjustment of tax for earlier years - -
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net - -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 698.53 234.68
Deferred tax charge/(credit} 698.53 234.68!
Tax expense for the year 1,654.78 461.26
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2024 = For the year ended 31 March 2023 1
Before tax | Tax (benefit) | Net of tax Before tax Tax (benefit) | Net of tax |
Re-measurements of defined benefit (29.84) 10.43 (19.41) (25.57) 8.94 (16.63)
liability
(29.84) 10.43 (1941) (25.57) 8.94 (16.63)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit / {Loss) before tax 4,357.79 1,319.5%
Company's domestic tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 1,522.79 461.12
Tax effect of:
Changes in Deferred tax related to prior year (47.05) 4
Changes in Current tax related to prior year 164.42 H
Others 14.62 0.14

1,654.78 461.26

The Company’s effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2024 is 37.97 % (31 March 2023: 34.95 %).

The Eompany has not adopted the concessional rate of tax of 22% (and surcharge of 10%) introduced vide ‘The Taxation Laws
z;'f_;k,rmuﬁ]gm) {Irdinance, 2019 on 20 September 2019 in the Income-Tax Act, 1961 and continues to apply existing tax rate of 30%.
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45 Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Netbalance  Recognised in -~ Recognised Other Deferred tax Deferred tax  Net deferred |

1 April 2023 statement of in OC1I adjustments asset Liability tax
profit and loss

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible (788.09) 78.45 - - (709.64) (709.64)

assets

Employee benefits 13.80 (5.54) - 8.26 8.26

Provisions 150.83 19,71 - 170.53 - 170.53

Biological assets {722.87) (175.48) - - - (898.34) (898.34)

MAT credit entitlements 928.12 374,95 - 1,303.17 - 1,303.17

Lease liabilities (2.86) 1.37 - - - (1.50) (1.50)

Unabsorbed Business losses and depreciation 1,151.69 (1,151.69) E - - -

Other items 250.74 159.70 16.43 - 420.85 - 420.85

| Tax assets / (liabilities) 081.45 (698.53) 10,43 - 1,902,82 (1,609.48) 293.34

Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31 March 2023

[Particulars Net balance Recognisedin -~ Recopnised Other Deferred tax  Deferred tax  Net deferred
1 April 2022 stalernent of in OCI adjustments asset liabsility tax
profit and loss

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible (842.41) 54.31 - (788.09) {788.09)
assets

Employee benefits 18.78 (4.98) - 13.80 13.80
Provisions 164.20 (13.37) - 150.83 150,83
Biological assets (718.37) (12.49) - {722.8T) {722.87)
MAT credit entitlements 704.40 223.82 - 928.22 928.22
Lease liabilities (0.53) (2.33) - - (2.86) (2.86)
Unabsorbed Business losses and depreciation 1,648.81 {497.12) - 1,§51.69 - 1,151.6%
Other ifems 22431 17.49 8.94 250.74 250.74
Tax assets / (liabilities) T 120720 (234.68) 8.94 - 249527 (1,513.82) 981.45

Significant management judgment is required in detenmining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of
deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income and the period over which deferred
income tax assets will be recovered.

The Company has recognised deferred tax asset to the extent that the same will be recoverable using the estimated firture taxable income based on the
approved business plans and budgets of the Company. The Company is expected to generate taxable income from the financial year ended 31 March 2024
onwards. MAT credit can be carried forward for a period of 15 assessment year respectievely as per the tax regulations and the Company expecis to
recover the losses.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cumrent tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Particulars 31 March 2024 Expiry date 31 March 2023  Expiry Date [

- 1,215.80 AY 2028-2%
- 1.215.80

- 2,080.01




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

46 Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment benefit plans in India.
Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company's contributions paid/payable to Regional Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance Scheme, Employees Pension Schemes,
1995, are determined under the relevant approved schemes and/or statutes and are recognised as expense in the Statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. There are no further obligations other than the contributions payable to the
approved appropriate authorities,
The Company recognised INR 218.13 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 205.91 lakhs) towards provident fund contribution in the Statement of
profit and loss.
Defined Benefit Plan:
The Company's gratuity and leave encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes are defined benefit plans. The Company's liability for
the defined benefit schemes is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method. The Company's net obligations in respect of
such plans is calculated by estimating the amount of fiture benefit that the employees have earned in return for their services and the current
and prior pericds that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of the plan asset is deducted. Actearial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss.
In accordance with the provisions of the Payment of Grawity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit plan which provides for gratuity
payments, The plan provides a lump sum gratuity payment to eligible employees at retirement or termination of their employment. The amounts
are based on the respective employee's last drawn salary and the years of employment with the Company.
Liabilities in respect of the grawity plan are determined by an actuarial valuation, based upon which the Company makes annual contributions
te the Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Schemes administered by the ICICI Prudential Life Insurance, a funded defined benefit plan for
qualifying employees, Trustees administer the contributions made by the Company to the gratuity scheme.
The most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation along with the fair valuation of the plan assets in relation to the gratuity
scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2024. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past
service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Based on the actuarial valvation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the emplovee benefit obligation and the plan
assets as at balance sheet date:
[Particalars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dy:fined benefit obligation 501.97 472.20
1 esel Fir 'ﬁqlug i glan assets 432.10 409.09
) T i
) [Net defined beriefit bligation 69.87 6311 |
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

46 Employee benefits (Continued)

i. Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/lability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset)/liability and its

components

Particulars

Opening balance
Tncluded in profit or loss
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Included in OCI

Re-measurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from:
Demographic assumptions
Finaneial assumptions

Experience adjustment

Other

Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid

Closing balance

Represented by

Net defined benefit asset
|Net defined benefit liability

Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net defined henefit (asset)/

Return on plan assets excluding interest income

Hability
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
472.22 430.90 409.10 403.04 63.12 27.86
44.55 39.00 - - 44.55 39.00
34.99 29.71 30.31 2781 4.68 1.90
4.56 = - - 4.56 .
40.50 (12.27) - - 40.5¢ (12.27)
(12.54) 26.13 - - (12.549) 26,13
. - 2.68 (11.72) (2.68) 11.72
584.28 513.47 442.09 415,13 142.19 94.35
. - 72.32 31.23 (72.32) (31.23)
(82.31) 41.27) (82.31} (41.27) -
501.97 472.20 432.10 409.09 69.87 63.1
69.87 63.11

ii. Plan assets

Plan assets comprise the following

|Insurer managed fund (100%)

31 March 2024
432.10

432.10

31 March 2023

409.09
409.09

iii. Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Particulars

Discount rate

Future salary growth
Expected retur on plan asset

Benefit Obligation
Rate of employee turnover

Weighted Average Duration of the Defined

31 March 2024
7.19%
6.50%
7.19%

6.00

31 March 2023
7.41%
5.00%
7.41%

6.00

12% p.a. for all 10% p.a. for all

Service groups

Service groups

P !h_h-l Iy, rate Indian Assured Indian Assured
('O‘& - '—._' { ¢ ., Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
¥ el Cem:;ﬂ tffi\\ < (2012-14) (2012-14)
O
* |r Nesogil 'r—;i‘ifi, s . . L. .
kall | Hason C ASSumptions liegarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables.
1 Western [ xpsceeinhway,
C,} IE’F” > ) /c":m /
)’ ® - (b‘-
7 &




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)
46  Employee benefits (Continued)
iv. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, helding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (23.93) 2647 (22.26) 24.72
Future salary growth (1% movement) 26.39 (24.29) 25.06 (22.95)
Rate of employee turnover (1% movement) -0.36 0.28 2.74 (3.08))

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year.

v. Expected future cash flows

The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity were as follows

W future benefit payments 31 March 2024 3t March 2023 |
1st Following year 67.71 86.94
2nd Following year 55.70 4986
3rd Following year 58.35 44.54
4th Following year 72.22 47.30
5th Following year 49.35 59.25

| Thereafter 475.71 460.04

Other long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences policy has been modified from 1 April 2022, As per revised policy all officers #ill Assistant manager can carryforward
leave applicable for the next year up to 30 days instead of 60 days as per previous policy. The charge towards compensated absences for the
year ended 31 March 2024 based on actuarial valuation using the projected accrued benefit method is INR 43.21 lakhs (31 March 2023 INR
39.49 takhs).

_Terminal Benefits: All terminal benefits including voluntary retirement compensation are fully charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

S

¢ "'c_—) flgmenﬁ;é\abs: . The Company has a scheme of Performance Linked Variable Remuneration {(PLVR) which rewards its employees based on

" F ?
rofit BQ‘:{:? ﬁ:;\( (PBT).
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

47 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base s0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development of the business.

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary objective
of Company's capital management is to maximize sharcholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in

the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants, if any.

The Company moniters capital using a ratio of “adjusted net debt’ to “Total equity”. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total

borrowings, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings (excluding lease liabilities), less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 was as follows.

Total borrowings
Less : Cash and cash equivalent
Adjusted net debt

Total equity

|Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

8,325.13 8,356.65
662.11 260.9]
7,723.02 §,005.74
18,759.34 16,075.74
0.4 (.50

Management monitors the return on capital as well as level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

48 Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer:

|Parficukars

Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price
Adjustment made to contract price on account of :-

a) Discounts/ Rebates/ Incentives
|Revenne from contract with customer as per the statement of profi¢ and loss (Refer Note 26)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

101,946.25 103,778.11
3,838.52 3,484.92
98,107.73 100,293.19

Sales by performance obligation

iUpon shipment
Upon delivery

31 March 2024

98,107.73

31 March 2023

100,293.19

98,107.73

100,293.1%

Sales by geographical disapgregation

| =
_z_"'.i::_ﬁc- o P i
/7 = Hales outside Injiia
i
|

31 March 2024

97,480.14
627.59

98,107.73

&

..f:_l 2 é@Q

31 March 2023

099,987.61
305.58
100,293.19
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)
50 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24, "Related Party Disclosures", are given betow".
1 Relationships:

(i) Uitimate Holding Company
Godrej Industries Limited

(i) Holding Compantes:

Godrej Agrovet Limited (GAVL) holds 51% in the Company.
Tyson India Holding Limited holds 49% in the Company.

(iiiy Fellow subsidiaries

Creamline Dairy Products Limited

Astec LifeSciences Limited

Godvet Agrochem Limited

Gadrej Catlte Genetics Private Limtied

Behram Chemicals Private Limited
Commergializadora Agricola Agroasua Chem Cia Lida

[= T TN PRI

(iv) Other related parties

I Godrej Consumer Products Limited
2 Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited

(v) Key Management Personnel and relatives of such Personnel

Nadir Burjor Godrej (Chairman)

Balram Singh Yadav (Managing Director}

Varadaraj Subramasnian (Director)

Yeong Sheng Lee (Director) {w.e.f 17/6/2023)

James Ward (Director} (w.e.f23/10.2023)

Syatrizal Hamdallah {Director) (w.e.f 16/10/2023)

Abay Parnerkar (Chief Executive (HTicer)

Suhas Ravindra Advant {Chief Financial Officer) (upto 1st May 2023}
Vikash Kumar Basan: Bivani {Chief Firancial Officer} (w.c.f. 26/07/2023)
Sanjay Vasudev Gogate ([ndependent Director)

Ahana Gautam (Independent Direcior) (w.e.f. 10/07/2G23)

OO = S B W R e

-5

(vi) Key Management Personnel of Parent Company

Tanya Dubash
Nadir Burjor Godrej
Nitin Nabar
Clement Pinto

Tejal Jariwala
Balrﬂm Singh Yadav
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupecs in lakhs)

50  Related Party Disclosures (Continned)

2 The following transactions were earried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business :

(i) Details relating to parties referred to in items 1(i), (iD), (iii)*

[ Holding Fellow Other
Nature of Transactions Companies Subsidiaries Relsated parties
0} (i) (iv)
I Sale of Property, plant and equipment -
2 Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 0.33 - -
0.27 - -
3 Sale of materials / finished goeds 23.68 -
22.54 -
4 Purchase of materials / finished goods 51,679.66 1.80 33.09
60,057.26 1.60 1742
5 Purchase of Power - 97.70 -
166.92
5 Expenses charged to / reimbursement received from other 13.08 -
companies
2238 -
6 Expenses charged by / reimbursement made 10 other 327.97 - 2.94
companies
421.54 - 3.70
7 Inter-corporate deposits received during the year 2,500.00 -
4,000.00 -
8 Inter-corporate deposits repaid during the year 2,500.00 -
4.000.00 .
9 Interest expense on Inter-corporate deposits received 5.24 -
5.96 -
11 Outstanding Inter-corporate deposits payable -
10 Outstanding (payables), net {4,429.24) (1.69) (0.46)
(9,106.49) (17.98) (3.02)|
*Previous year numbers are shown in italics,
(i)  Details relating to persons referred to in items 1 (v}
[ 31March 2024 3] March 2023'|
] | Hemuneration to key management personnel
s ‘ Post-cinployment benefits 3.95 20.44
; .;_’<'b<%> 111 roRemufesiion 206.59 169.00
[02¢ ¥ Digctor's sining fees 16.51 8.26
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Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

50 Related Party Disclosures (Continned)

Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS - 24, "Related Party Disclosures”, are given below.

3 Significant related party transactions:
| Sr.No. MNature of Transaction 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Sale of Property, plant and equipment
Godrej Agrovet Limited -
2 Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
Godrej Agrovet Limited 0.33 0.27
3 Sale of materials / finished goods
Godrej Agrovet Limited 22.3¢ 21.42
Godrej Industries Limited 138 1.12
4 Purchase of materials / finished goods
Godrej Agrovet Limited 51,679.66 60,057.26
Godrej Consumer Products Limited 9.52 1172
Godrej & Boyce Mfg Co Limited 23.56 540
Creamline Dairy Products Limited 1.80 1.60
5 Purchase of Power
Creamline Dairy Products Limited 97.70 166.92
6 Expenses charged to / reimbursement received frem other companies
Godrej Agrovet Limited 13.08 22.38
Creamline Dairy Preducts Limited - 14.82
7 Expenses charged by / reimbursement made to other companies
Godrgj Agrove! Limited 315.94 413.69
Godrej Industries Limited 12.03 7.85
Godrej & Boyce Mfg Co Limited 2.94 3.70
8 Inter-corporate deposits received during the year
Godrej Agrovet Limited 2,500.00 4,000.00
9 Inter-corporate deposits repaid during the year
Godrej Agrovet Limited 2,500,000 4,000.00

10 Interest expense on Inter-corporate deposits received
Godrej Agrovet Limited 5.24 5.96

11 QOutstanding Inter-corporate Deposits payable
Godrej Agrovet Limited -

12 Qutstanding loans /advances payables
Godrej Agrovet Limited 3.15 211.75

13 Qutstanding receivables
Godrej Agrovet Limited 1.98 3.07
Godrej Industries Limited 0.00 0.20
Creamline Dairy Products Limited -

1 QOutstanding payables

Liodrej Agrovet Limited 4,427.61 8,898.01
Godrej Industries Limited 0.46 -

Godrej & Boyee Mfg Co Limited - 0.11
Godrej Consumer Products Limited 0.46 291

Creamline Dairy Products Limited 1.6% 17.98




Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

51 Exceptional Item
During the year ended 31 March 2024, Exceptional item inclides
1. Amount of Rs. 72.92 lakhs paid by the company under Amnesty in FY24 and Rs. 126.05 lakhs paid earlier under protest now recognised as
€xpense under VAT Amnesty Scheme for seftlement of difforential VAT kabilities on Frozen Non-Vegetarian products and Frozen
Vegetarian value-added products where company had charged VAT 5% and as per depariment VAT is chargeable @ 14.5% from the
assessment year 2011 to 2016, During the year VAT authorities in the state of Karnataka, West Bengal and Maharashtra came out with VAT
amnesty scheme to settle old pending cases. Since ammesty scheme was beneficial to the Company, management has decided to settle old
VAT liabilities under the ammesty scheme.,
2. Amount of Rs. 43047 lakhs recognized as €xpense by the company for amount paid under protest in Karnataka for FY 2013-14,2014-15
and 2015-16 towards differential VAT liabilities on Frozen Non-Vegetarian products and Frozen Vegetarian value-added products where
company had charged VAT 5% and as per departinent VAT js chargeable @ 14.5%,

52 1. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall;
(a) directiy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

2.The company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiarics

AS per our teport of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniansy Godrej ¥ son Foods Limited
Firm's Registration No- 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U15l|_‘.l.r"-lH2008PLC177741
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14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing
B S R & CO . LL P Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center
Western Express Highway
Chartered Accountants Goregacn {East), Mumbai — 400 063, India
Telephone: +31 (22} 6257 1000
Fax: +81 (22) 6257 1010

ndependent Auditor's keport

To the Members of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited {the "Company”) which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income}, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Bzsls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs} specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Informaltion (or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the Financial

Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon”)

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report(s) thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directars'/Board of Trustees' Responsibllities for the Financial

Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

Registered Office:
B S R & Co, (a partnership firm with Registrafion No. BAE1223) converted intc B S R & Co, LLP (a 14th Floor, Ceniral B Wing and North C Wing, Nasco IT Park 4, Nesco
o Limited Liability Parinership with LLP Registration No, AAB-8181} with effect from October 14, 2013 Canter, Western Express Highway, Goregaon {East}, Mumbal - 400063
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

| Auditor's R sibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stateman 5

I i Yo e AT A — | S

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We alse:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Top=ip

nort on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order"} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive ihcome}), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our apinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 39 fo the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the Note 52a to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person{(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 52b to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Godrej Tyson Foods Limited

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i} and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account which, along with access management tools, as
applicable, have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being

tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Y

- Burjis Pardiwala

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 23 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24103595BKFWEW3610
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i (a} {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i} {b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this pericdicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee and those disclosed below) disclosed in the financial statements are held
in the name of the Company, except for the following which are not held in the name of the
Company:

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period Reason for
of property carrying name of promoter, held- not being
value director or indicate held in the
{Rs in their range, name of

Lakhs) relative or where the
employee appropriate | Company.

Also
indicate if
in dispute
Hoskote 10243 Various land | No From March @ Company is
RGC Plant - owners (As 2010 in process
New Land per Revenue onwards of transfer
0.23 acres records} of the
property in

its name
Tumkur 23.86 Godrej No From Company is
Hatchery Agrovet January in process
Land Limited 2011 of transfer
onwards of the
| property in

| its name

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revaiued its Property, Plant and Equipment
{including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending. against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1888 and rules made thereunder.

Page 50of 12



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(i) ()

(iii)

{a)

{b)

(c)

The inventory, except stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified by the
management during the year.For stocks lying with third pariies at the year-end, written
confirmations have been obtained. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions, In our opinion, the
quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions
are in agreement with the bocks of account of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. The Company has provided guarantee
and security and has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to Companies during
the year in respect of which the requisite information ts as below. The Company has not
provided any guarantee or security, granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to limited liability partnership or any other pariies during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity as below:

|
Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in

{Rs. in Lakhs} | (Rs. in | {(Rs. in | nature of loans
Lakhs} Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Aggregate amount during
the year

Others - - 600 -

Balance outstanding as
at balance sheet date

QOthers

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided, security given
during the year and the terms and cenditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature
of loans and guarantees provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular except for the loan of Rs. 25 lakhs given to M/s Saishwara Hatcheries, which are
repayable on demand. As informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the
loan during the year, Thus, there has been no default on the part of the party to whom the money
has been lent. The payment of interest has been regular. Further, the Company has not given
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(d)

(e)

b

(iv)

(vi}

(vii) (a)

(b}

any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to seftle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
periad of repayment except for the loan of INR 25 Lakhs granted to M/s Saishwara Hatcheries,
The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or pericd of repayment to its Promoters and related
parties as defined in Clause {76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security
given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(viil)

(ix) (a)

(b)

I ]
Name of the Nature of Amount Pericdto | Forum where | Remarks, if
statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is any
lakhs) amount pending
[ relates
Income Tax | Income Tax | 5.06 2017-2018 | AssistantComi
Act, 1861 ssioner of
Income Tax
|
income Tax | Income Tax | 2.06 2021-2022 | Assistant
Act, 1961 [ Comissioner
of Income Tax
Value added | Value 352.21 2015-16 Joint
fax added tax Commisioner-
Karnataka
Central Sales tax, | 6.95 2020-21 Joint
Sales Tax | Value Commisioner-
Actand Local  added tax Karnataka
Sales Tax | and Central
Act Sales Tax |
Goods and  Goods and | 208.07 2021-22 Deputy
Service Tax, Service Tax Commissioner
2017 , Raigadh
| Division
Goods and | Goods and | 199.90 2022-23 Deputy |
Service Tax, | Service Tax Commissioner
2017 , Raigadh
Division
Goods and | Goods and | 55,99 2017-18 Assistant
Service Tax, | Service Tax Commissioner
2017 , Agapura,
Telangana
Goods and | Goods and | 4559 2020-21 Deputy
Service Tax, | Service Tax Commissioner
2017 } Raigadh
| Division

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessmenis under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

{e)

t)

(x (a)

(b)

(i} (a)

{b)

{c)

(xii)

(xill)

{xiv} (a)

(b)

(xv)

{(xvi) (a)

(b)

{c)

bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024, Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12} of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rufe
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given te us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our cpinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(d)

{xvii}

{xviit)

(xix)

(xx} (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core invesiment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have maore
than one CIC.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii} of the Crder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of other than
ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule VH to the Act till the date of our report.
However, the time period for such transfer i.e. six months of the expiry of the financial year as
permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed
till the date of our report.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5} of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing
project. Accordingly, clause 3{xx}(b} of the Order is not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

@mdmoi@

Burjis Pardiwala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103595
Date: 23 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24103595BKFWEW3610
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A){f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Godrej Tyson
Foods Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statemenis of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal conirol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements.

Hmlnnnﬂhﬁrrglﬂnlﬂﬂnl Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Godrej Tyson Foods Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

stions of Inlernal Financial Controls with Referenca to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaternents
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Mw&lﬂ‘

Burjis Pardiwala

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 103585
Date: 23 April 2024 {CAI UDIN:24103595BKFWEW3610
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